

FINANCIAL AID AID AANDBOOK

Community College of Aurora (CCA) Financial Aid Office 16000 E. CentreTech Pkwy., Suite A103, Aurora, CO 80011 (303) 360-4709 financialaid@ccaurora.edu FAFSA School Code: 016058

Table of Contents

INTRODUCTION

page 4

WHAT IS FINANCIAL AID?

page 5

TUITION ASSISTANCE

page 5

CCA FOUNDATION SCHOLARSHIPS

page 6

NEED-BASED FINANCIAL AID PROGRAMS

page 6

WHEN TO APPLY FOR FINANCIAL AID

page 10

HOW TO APPLY FOR FINANCIAL AID

page 11

DETERMINING NEED

page 13

ANNUAL BUDGETS

page 14

FINANCIAL AID AWARD

page 15

STUDENTS' RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES

page 16

PAYMENT OF FINANCIAL AID

page 17

RETURN OF TITLE IV - MONEY YOU PAY BACK

page 18

PURCHASING BOOKS USING FINANCIAL AID FUNDS

page 19

PACKAGING POLICY

page 19

REPEAT A COURSE POLICY

page 20

FINANCIAL AID SATISFACTORY ACADEMIC PROGRESS POLICY

page 21

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENTS (SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES)

page 21

INTRODUCTION

The CCA Financial Aid Office is dedicated to providing support to students and their families in meeting the costs of a college education. CCA participates in a wide variety of federal, state, and private financial aid programs. The financial aid process is often confusing and difficult to complete as both state and federal regulations and laws govern financial aid. The requirements, procedures and processes for obtaining financial aid are exacting and may change at any time during the school year; therefore, the CCA Financial Aid Office's goal is to help students through this process. This handbook will help you to understand the financial aid process and provides the answers to questions you may have regarding financial aid. It is important for you and your parents (if you are a dependent student) to understand and familiarize yourselves with the financial aid application process. As financial assistance is limited and the requests for funds usually exceed the amounts available, you should apply early and follow the instructions in this handbook.

PHILOSOPHY OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

The administration of financial aid programs at the Community College of Aurora is designed to complement and serve the educational programs of the institution. The services provided by the CCA Financial Aid Office are necessary for the operation of the college and will be provided through a cooperative relationship with other areas of the college. The needs of the student will remain paramount in all decisions. Since the operation of the CCA Financial Aid Office is dependent upon federal, state, and local resources, it is our philosophy to utilize those funds to facilitate support for students, who without such assistance would not be able to attend CCA. CCA accepts the Federal Need Analysis Methodology as a fair and equitable means of determining the student's or the family's ability to contribute to the student's educational expenses.

WHAT IS FINANCIAL AID?

Financial aid is a way of providing money to people who want to attend college. There are two types of financial aid. The first type is called merit or scholarship assistance. The second type is called need-based financial aid. Following is a detailed explanation of both of these types of aid:

MERIT SCHOLARSHIP/GRANT ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS/AND PRIVATE SCHOLARSHIPS

Merit-Based Scholarship/Grants criteria vary greatly. Criterion may include academic achievement, program affiliation, civic involvement or financial need. Financial need may be a criterion for some scholarships/grants, but it is usually not the primary selection factor. These scholarships/grants have their own specific applications and very often, their own specific deadline dates. Any student who is interested in pursuing a merit-based scholarship/ grant should carefully review the available information on each scholarship. Additional information is available in the CCA Financial Aid Office or Scholarship Hub Office. Note: If a student receives a scholarship it will be counted in determining his or her financial need. Other types of aid may be reduced if the scholarship, when combined with other assistance, more than meets the student's documented need or falls outside the packaging policy parameters.

Colorado Application for State Financial Aid (CASFA) – is the application by which students that meet the qualification can apply for this aid. Students who do not have lawful immigration status and who do not meet the qualifications listed above are still encouraged to apply for institutional aid using the CASFA. Students who are eligible for Federal Title IV aid by completing the FAFSA should not complete the CAFSA. In 2022, the General Assembly passed HB22-1155, In-state Tuition For Colorado High School Graduates, which updates the eligibility criteria for Colorado students to receive in-state tuition. The requires an institution to classify a student as an in-state student for tuition purposes if the student: Graduated from a Colorado high school or was physically present in Colorado for at least one year immediately preceding the date the student successfully completed a high school equivalency examination in Colorado; and Has been physically present in Colorado for at least 12 consecutive months prior to enrolling in an institution. There is no longer a requirement for the student to be admitted to college within 12 months of graduation.

TUITION ASSISTANCE

Tuition assistance funds are provided by CCA to students who meet the criteria for the fund. Applications are available on-line at www.ccaurora.edu.

THE COMMUNITY COLLEGE OF AURORA FOUNDATION SCHOLARSHIPS

The Community College of Aurora Foundation is a 501 (c) (3) nonprofit organization that provides student funding and other resources for the development of the college. This is put into practice by an outstanding volunteer Board of Directors and college staff. The CCA Financial Aid Department processes all Foundation scholarships and must receive the completed post acceptance application requirements by the dates published within the scholarship portal or two weeks after scholarship offer. The Foundation scholarships are awarded in the fall, spring, and summer semesters. A complete list of the Foundation scholarships and the application form is available at: https://ccaurora.academicworks.com/opportunities.

The CCA Foundation General Scholarship Application for the summer/fall semesters is open March 4th through May 31st for the 2024-2025 aid year. To receive priority for summer scholarships, please submit your application by May 1st. The CCA Foundation General Scholarship Application for the spring semester is open October 1st through November 30th. Disbursement of awards are scheduled during the months of July & August for the fall semester and January for the spring semester.

NEED-BASED FINANCIAL AID PROGRAMS

To qualify for need-based financial aid, students must complete the Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA), and have their financial situation analyzed by a national formula called the Federal Methodology. (If the student meets the official definition of "dependent", their parents' financial position is also taken into consideration.) It is possible for a student to have both merit- and need-based financial aid at the same time. It is important, however, that the student complete the proper applications in order to be considered for both merit- and need-based aid.

There are two types of need-based aid: gift and self-help. Gift Assistance includes grants from state, federal and institutional sources. Self-help indicates the student has a responsibility to provide his or her fair share of the cost of going to school. Self-help funds are comprised of work-study and/or loans. Students must be enrolled in a minimum of six credit hours per semester in order to receive funds from most of the following programs. Any exception to this six-credit-hour rule is noted in the actual program description. Scholarship assistance is generally awarded regardless of financial need. Each scholarship has its own criteria. Below is a description of the different types of financial aid.

NEED-BASED GIFT ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS

Federal Pell Grant (PELL) - This program serves as the foundation, or base, for other forms of aid. This program is designed for undergraduate students who do not have a bachelor's degree. The amount

of the award is determined by a federal funding formula, the student's cost of education, and the number of credit hours for which the student enrolls. The United States Congress sets the amount of Federal Pell Grants each year. Federal Pell Grants are available for eligible students who attend a minimum of one credit hour per term. Students who transfer to CCA during the academic year will have their eligibility determined on an individual basis. Students may not receive Federal Pell Grant funds from more than one school at a time.

Pell Lifetime Eligibility Limit. The duration of a student's eligibility to receive a Federal Pell Grant is **12 full-time semesters** (or its equivalent). The calculation of the duration of a student's eligibility will include all years of the student's receipt of Federal Pell Grant funding. Once a student has received a Federal Pell Grant for 12 full-time semesters (or its equivalent) the student will no longer be eligible for a Federal Pell Grant for future semesters.

Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant (SEOG) - This program is designed to be awarded first to those applicants with exceptional need. Priority is given to students who are eligible for the Federal Pell Grant. The legal limits of this award range from \$100 to \$4,000 per year; the standard award at CCA is a maximum of \$4,000 per year.

Colorado Student Grant (CSG) - This program is funded by the Colorado State Assembly and provides funds for undergraduates with a "substantial" financial need, who are residents of Colorado (for tuition purposes). The standard award at CCA is a maximum of \$8,000 per year.

NEED BASED SELF HELP PROGRAMS

Work Programs

Federal (FWS) and State (CWS) Need-Based College Work-Study Programs – CCA participates in two work-study programs with award amounts based on the applicant's documented need. These programs provide employment opportunities that enable students to earn money to fund their education. To the extent practical, CCA will attempt to provide employment that complements and reinforces the educational and vocational career goals of each student. Students' earnings are restricted to the amount of their award. To qualify, a student must not have a bachelor's degree for both programs and be a Colorado resident for the State Work-Study Program.

Colorado No-Need Work-Study Program (CONN) - The state provides limited funds for employment of students who do not necessarily have a financial need. Applicants must be Colorado residents for tuition purposes. Students' earnings are restricted to the amount of their award. Students should submit a work study application, available at the financial aid office. To qualify, a student must be a Colorado resident and not have a bachelor's degree.

Federal Loan Programs

Loans are an effective and reliable method of funding higher education. However, there are a few things that should be considered before a student borrows:

- When a student borrows, he or she is accepting the responsibility of repaying the loan plus the interest.
- It is the student's responsibility to know all of the terms and conditions of the loan.
- The student is expected to know his or her repayment options and responsibilities, including when repayment must begin, what kind of loan(s) the student has, and what options exist concerning consolidation, deferment, and forbearance.
- Failure to repay a loan will cause the student serious consequences, possibly including, but not limited to, ineligibility for other financial aid, withholding of tax refunds by the Internal Revenue Service, difficulty in obtaining credit, and the garnishing of wages.
- Students must be in attendance in a minimum of six credit hours for each term they receive a loan. Students who do not meet this requirement may be required to pay the loan immediately in full.

Students should carefully review their situation before they borrow. Consideration should be given to other sources of funding and ways in which lifestyle could be adjusted. Students need to calculate exactly how much loan is necessary to meet their educational needs, and to review their repayment obligations thoroughly before assuming added debt.

CCA participates in the following The William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan Program. Interest rates on these loans are set annually. For more information on interest rates contact the CCA Financial Aid Office.

Direct Loan - This low interest loan is divided into two parts. Subsidized Direct Loans (SUB) are based on a student's financial need that is unmet by other types of financial aid. Unsubsidized Direct Loans (UNSUB) are used to replace the family contribution. With a subsidized loan, the federal government pays the interest on the loan while the student is attending college and up to six months after leaving college. If a student receives an unsubsidized loan, the student has the option to either pay the accruing interest quarterly, or to have it capitalized at the point repayment begins. The U.S. Department of Education sets maximums that limit how much a student may borrow at all institutions within an academic year. These maximums are as follows for 2023-2024:

ELIGIBILITY PER YEAR Fall 2024, Spring 2025, Summer 2025	SUBSIDIZED	UNSUBSIDIZED Interest begins from date of disbursement	TOTAL YEARLY Fall 2024, Spring 2025, Summer 2025
Dependent Freshman	\$3,500	\$2,000	\$5,500
Dependent Sophomore*	\$4,500	\$2,000	\$6,500
Independent Freshman	\$3,500	\$6,000	\$9,500
Independent Sophomore*	\$4,500	\$6,000	\$10,500

^{*} Students are not considered sophomores until after they have earned a minimum of 30 credit hours.

Direct PLUS Loan – This loan is for the parents of dependent students. The parent(s) may borrow up to the cost of education less any estimated financial aid the student will receive. Applications are available at participating lenders and at the financial aid offices.

Dependent Students without parent support - Although students whose parents refuse support are not eligible for a dependency override, the Higher Education Opportunity Act of 2008 (HEOA) granted that such students may receive unsubsidized direct loans only. For a student to be eligible for this provision, the student must provide documentation (1) that his parents refuse to provide information for his FAFSA and (2) that they do not and will not pro¬vide any financial support to him and include the date the support ended. If the parents refuse to sign and date a statement to this effect, the student must provide documentation from a third party (the student themself is not suf¬ficient), such as a teacher, counselor, cleric, or court.

Alternative Loans - Alternative loans are, simply put, private loans offered by banks or other lending institutions. These loans are dependent on the student's enrollment status but are not offered or subsidized by the federal government. The loans are subject to the terms of the bank or lending institution from whom the loan is from. Alternative loans should only be considered after applying for federal student aid. An alternative student loan is for students for whom federal student loans and/or grants did not provide enough funds to help pay for their college expenses, have reached the maximum loan amounts they can receive for a Direct Loan, or are on financial aid suspension. Each bank or lending institution has their own requirements and procedures for applying for a loan. In general, the student must be enrolled at least half-time and go through a credit check to qualify for a loan. When selecting a loan, choose one that offers you the lowest costs without sacrificing quality customer service. Determine what your monthly payments will be before you take out a loan. To get an idea of what those payments might be, use the repayment calculator on that bank's web site or try one at www.finaid. org. Also be sure to ask each lender what the total cost of the loan will be. We encourage students to review the different alternative student loan programs before making any decisions. We also encourage students to read and understand all the policies and requirements before signing any papers.

MANDATORY ENTRANCE AND EXIT COUNSELING SESSIONS

All first time borrowers are required to participate in a loan counseling session prior to submitting their loan request. Information concerning students' rights and responsibilities with regard to their loans will be provided at that time. Additionally, students who are graduating or that drop below half-time attendance will be required to complete an exit counseling session. The counseling session provides information about how to manage your student loans after college.

NATIONAL STUDENT LOAN DATA SYSTEM (NSLDS)

The National Student Loan Data System (NSLDS) is the U.S. Department of Education's central database for student financial aid records. Federal loans disbursed to students or parents will be submitted to NSLDS and will be accessible by guaranty agencies, lenders, and institutions determined to be authorized users of the data system. Student and parent borrowers can track and manage their federal student loans and grants online at www.studentaid.gov. The secured site displays information on loans and grants, including amounts, outstanding balances and status. Student and parent borrowers can also find contact information for their loan servicer.

WHEN TO APPLY FOR FINANCIAL AID

Financial aid is awarded on a first-come, first-served basis. The order in which a student's file is completed determines when the award is made. CCA has three priority consideration dates during the year. If a student has a completed file in the CCA Financial Aid Office by the following dates, they will be given priority in determining eligibility for financial aid:

Fall Semester May 1 Spring Semester November 1 Summer Semester April 1

Students may apply after the priority consideration dates. Students who are eligible for Federal Pell Grants may apply at any time, so long as their financial aid applications are complete during the period in which they are enrolled. (Note: The last day to submit the FAFSA each year is June 30). Financial aid applications are considered complete once all requested documents and materials are submitted. Applications, documents, or materials that complete the application, that are received after the priority consideration dates are regarded as late and will be reviewed on a time-available basis. This means that aid may not be available in time to pay tuition and fee costs. Late-applying students should be prepared to make payment arrangements. Aid not processed by the payment due date will be awarded during the term the student is enrolled.

Students who apply for loans should be aware of the processing deadlines. These dates are posted at the Financial Aid Office each term.

Financial aid awards are made for a maximum of one academic year. Students must reapply each academic year to establish their eligibility for continued financial assistance. FAFSA applications for each academic year are available January 1 of each year. Eligibility used at another school will count toward these academic year maximums.

SUMMER LOAN

Summer semester is awarded separately from fall and spring semester. The eligibility of Federal Student Loan for summer semester is based upon each student's remaining annual limits for loans. Student who receive their maximum loan eligibility for the Fall and Spring semesters may not have any remaining eligibility for summer federal student loan.

SUMMER PELL GRANT

Funding for Year-Round Pell has been reinstated. This means that students can receive additional Pell for summer terms within the academic year. This can allow you to stay on track for graduation or even to complete your bachelor's degree early. For example, if you are awarded \$6,345 for the year, then under the Year-Round Pell program students may receive up to \$3,173 for attending college in the summer.

HOW TO APPLY FOR FINANCIAL AID

To be considered for financial aid, applicants must complete a Free Application for Federal Student Aid (FAFSA) ON THE WEB at www.studentaid.gov. If applicants do not have access to a computer, computers are available to use in the CCA Financial Aid Office. Applicants may also make an appointment for assistance in completing a FAFSA. Contact the CCA Financial Aid Office at 303-360-4709 to make an appointment.

Four to six weeks after submitting an application to the Federal Processor, the applicant will receive confirmation of their application in the form of a FAFSA Submission Summary (FSS). When the applicant receives their FSS, they may want to contact the CCA Financial Aid Office to confirm that the school has received the application data as well.

ENROLLMENT REQUIREMENTS

To receive financial aid, the student must be enrolled at CCA in a degree or financial aid eligible certificate program. Some aid programs allow for less than full-time attendance, but most require the student to be enrolled at least half-time:

Full-Time: 12 credit hours or more

Three-quarter time: 9 to 11 credit hours

Half-time: 6 to 8 credit hours

Less-than-half-time: 1 to 5 credit hours

STUDENT ELIGIBILITY

To be considered for need-based aid at CCA, applicants must:

Be a United States citizen, or a citizen of the Federated States of Micronesia, the Marshall Islands,
a permanent resident of the trust territory of the Pacific Islands (Palau), or an eligible non-citizen.
A non-citizen is considered eligible if he/she is in the United States for other than a temporary
purpose and is, or intends to become, a permanent resident. Evidence in the form of an alien
registration receipt card or an approved notice from the Department of Homeland Security will
be required to verify permanent resident status.

- 2. Not be in default on a student loan or owe a repayment on a federal grant.
- 3. Be over 16 years of age and not enrolled at a secondary education institution.
- 4. Be registered, if required, with the Selective Service.
- 5. Effective July 1, 2012, students who do not have a high school diploma or a recognized equivalent (e.g., GED), or do not meet the home school requirements, will not be eligible to receive Federal student aid.
 - If the student was enrolled in a federal student aid eligible program prior to July 1, 2012.

 The ATB alternatives include the student passing an independently administered, approved ATB test or successfully completing a least six college level credit hours of postsecondary education.
- 6. Have completed the FAFSA application, had it processed, and have coded the FAFSA application with CCA's School Code so that CCA receives the applicant's information.
- 7. Be enrolled at CCA as a regular student in an approved degree or certificate program.
- 8. Plan to attend classes on at least a half-time basis (six credit hours or more). Federal Pell Grant recipients may qualify on a less-than-half-time basis. (See section titled "TYPES OF AID" for more specific information.)
- 9. Have supplied the CCA Financial Aid Office with any additional application material or requested documentation in order to be considered for financial aid. Required documents may include the following (please use black ink on any forms that you submit to the CCA Financial Aid Office):
 - The Student Authorization of Payment from Financial Aid Funds and Statement of Educational Purpose. This form is available from the CCA Financial Aid Office or website.
 - Verification Worksheet. Approximately 30 percent of financial aid applicants are asked to verify the information they have reported on their application. This process is called verification. Selected students will receive the Verification Worksheet by mail from the CCA Financial Aid Office. Students need to complete the form and return it promptly to the CCA Financial Aid Office.
 - Copy of IRS federal income tax transcript returns as specified on the Verification Worksheet, or as requested by the CCA Financial Aid Office.
 - Substantiation of additional resources.
 - Other information requested by the CCA Financial Aid Office.
- 10. Maintain satisfactory and measurable academic progress.
- 11. Meet other state and federal eligibility requirements.

DETERMINING NEED

Student Aid Index (SAI) is the amount of money the student (and the student's parent(s), if the student is dependent) can realistically be expected to contribute toward their educational costs while in school. It is calculated from the FAFSA submitted to the Federal Processor. The calculation to determine the individual family contribution is based on financial and other information supplied by the student and family. This contribution is subtracted from the student budget when determining the amount of the award. If the student is considered an Independent Student, only the student (and the spouse's if the student is married) information is used to calculate the student aid index. The student is considered an Independent Student if any one of the following applies. If the student: (1) is 24 years of age or older as of January 1 of the specific year (please refer to the FAFSA for the actual year); (2) is working on a master's or doctorate program; (3) is married; (4) has children who receive more than half of their support from them; (5) has dependents (other than children or spouse) who live with them and who receive more than half of their support for the year (please refer to the FAFSA for the current year); (6) is a ward of the court or both parents are deceased; (7) a veteran of the U.S. Armed Forces. The student is a Dependent Student if NONE of the conditions above apply. If the student is a Dependent Student, the student and the student's parents' income information is also used.

ANNUAL BUDGETS

To evaluate which applicants are eligible to receive need-determined financial aid, CCA establishes an annual budget based on the financial aid applicant's educational expenses as defined by federal and state guidelines. This budget is designed to reflect on the financial aid applicant's costs. Variables such as the size of the applicant's family are considered in the calculation of the student's family contribution. (See the section above on DETERMINING NEED). These budgets are an estimate based on full-time attendance at 12 credit hours per semester for the fall and spring terms.

CCA (RESIDENT)						
	Away	Home	Campus			
Books	\$1,460.00	\$1,460.00	\$1,460.00			
Board	\$4,248.00	\$2,763.00	\$4,248.00			
Fees	\$412.00	\$412.00	\$412.00			
Loan Fees	\$36.00	\$36.00	\$36.00			
Medical	\$3,150.00	\$3,150.00	\$3,150.00			
Personal	\$1,746.00	\$1,557.00	\$1,746.00			
Room	\$12,537.00	\$8,424.00	\$12,537.00			
Transportation	\$1,548.00	\$1,548.00	\$1,548.00			
Tuition	\$4,058.00	\$4,058.00	\$4,058.00			
Total 9 month COA	\$29,195.00	\$23,408.00	\$29,195.00			

CCA (NON-RESIDENT)						
	Away	Home	Campus			
Books	\$1,460.00	\$1,460.00	\$1,460.00			
Board	\$4,248.00 \$2,763.00		\$4,248.00			
Fees	\$412.00 \$412.00		\$412.00			
Loan Fees	\$36.00 \$36.00		\$36.00			
Medical	\$3,150.00 \$3,150.00		\$3,150.00			
Personal	\$1,746.00 \$1,557.00		\$1,746.00			
Room	\$12,537.00	\$8,424.00	\$12,537.00			
Transportation	\$1,548.00	\$1,548.00	\$1,548.00			
Tuition	\$16,658.00	\$16,658.00	\$16,658.00			
Total 9 month COA	\$41,795.00	\$36,008.00	\$41,795.00			

^{*}Please see the CCA semester schedule for specific tuition and fee costs.

CHILD/DEPENDENT CARE COSTS, COST OF A COMPUTER

Applicants who wish to have child/dependent care costs, or the cost of a computer included in their budget may submit an appeal to the Financial Aid Office. Such appeals must be in writing and include documentation of the actual costs incurred while the student attends school. Even if these costs are properly documented, it might not be possible to fund these expenses out of financial aid monies controlled by the college.

FINANCIAL AID AWARD

A financial aid 'offer' or 'award' is made after an applicant's eligibility for funds has been determined. This award, which may include several kinds of financial aid, is called a 'package'. The package may contain a combination of grants, scholarship, workstudy, or the recommendation that the applicant obtain a student loan. The award is based on a student's attending full-time (enrolling in 12 or more credit hours per term) and may be revised if the student's enrollment status changes. Any applicant who makes official application for financial aid will receive written notification of the outcome of the aid request.

CCA reserves the right to review and cancel the financial aid awards at any time because of changes in financial resources, residency, marital status, the recipient's failure to remain in good standing at CCA for financial aid, academic, or disciplinary reasons. Award adjustments can be made if additional information concerning a student's eligibility is received after awards are made. Any information that is considered to be misleading will result in cancellation of aid until the information is clarified. From time to time it becomes necessary for various reasons to change the specific guidelines and requirements for any given award. These changes may occur without prior notice due to a shortage of funds or the total number of students applying for aid.

STUDENTS' RIGHTS & RESPONSIBILITIES

YOU HAVE THE RIGHT TO:

- 1. Know that CCA will provide students information about cost of attendance, available financial assistance, program policies, application deadlines, etc., through various publications and correspondence.
- 2. Expect confidentiality. All financial aid information submitted to the CCA Financial Aid Office will remain confidential according to the college policy regarding the release of information from student records pursuant to the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1976.
- 3. Accept all or part of the financial aid assistance offered.
- 4. Have your financial aid application reviewed upon request if there has been a significant change in your family situation. However, this does not always result in an increase of awards.
- 5. Examine your financial aid records. You may request a review with the CCA Financial Aid Office.
- 6. Expect fair treatment. CCA does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, sexual orientation, physical or mental disability, veteran status or age.
- 7. Know statistics on student completion, transfer and graduation rates, athletic related information, crime statistics and campus safety reports.

YOU ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR:

- 1. Supplying accurate information on all forms submitted. Funds obtained on the basis of false or misleading information must be repaid and could result in criminal prosecution, prison sentence, and/or a \$10,000 fine pursuant to U.S. Criminal Code and Colorado Criminal Code.
- 2. Reporting any assistance received from sources outside the CCA Financial Aid Office.
- 3. Responding to all requests from the CCA Financial Aid Office in a timely manner.
- 4. Reporting any change in your circumstances that may affect your eligibility for financial aid. These changes include residency, enrollment status (dropping and/or withdrawing from course(s), an increase or decrease of financial resources.
- 5. Using financial aid funds for educational expenses related to your education at CCA.
- 6. Repaying all types of loan assistance. You must inform lenders of any change in name, address, or enrollment status while you are attending school and also after you graduate or leave school.
- 7. Monitoring your academic progress to meet the Standards of Academic Progress Policy (also known as the Satisfactory Academic Progress policy).
- 8. Meeting your educational costs. Financial aid may be available to assist when you and/or your family efforts leave a gap in meeting those costs.

PAYMENT OF FINANCIAL AID

DISBURSEMENT

When a student who is receiving financial aid registers for classes, non-work-study funds that have been awarded are displayed on the student's tuition bill/schedule of classes. Books and supplies may be "charged" at the campus bookstore, against remaining funds. Check with the CCA Financial Aid Office for current procedures and the bookstore schedule. (Please see section in this handbook on Purchasing Books Using Financial Aid Funds). If there is a dollar balance available on the student's account after paying tuition, fee and book charges, etc., this amount is distributed to the student through the Cashier's Office after the main census (drop/add) date. Note: Due to certain federal and state regulations, the delivery of funds into student accounts and the refund process are separate processes carried out by separate offices. To help prevent any delivery delays, it's the responsibility of the student to keep CCA informed of any changes to student contact information.

Students should remember that their financial aid notices will be based on full-time attendance. Award amounts may be modified if enrollment status changes. (Please see section in this handbook on Satisfactory Progress for definitions of enrollment status.)

Student Loan Disbursements - Student loan funds are sent directly to CCA and paid to the student's account. The loan will first pay off the balance on the student's account. The balance leftover will be sent to the student by CCCS Refund Card (BankMobile). The first Loan disbursements are made after the main census or 30 days after regularly scheduled classes start for the first-time borrowers. A loan or loans will not be disbursed prior to the disbursement date for any reason.

Work-Study Students – Students employed through the work-study programs are paid on the CCA bi-weekly payroll calendar for actual hours worked. Students who receive work-study funding should check with the Payroll Office or financial aid office regarding their job placement.

COURSE PROGRAM OF STUDY (CPOS)

Federal regulations require student to be "degree" or "eligible certificate" seeking to receive financial aid, but the courses student take must also be required for the program. Essentially, only the coursework that counts toward student's degree will be used in determining student's hours of enrollment for federal aid purposes (grants, loans, Federal and State Work-Study). This is referred to as Course Program of Study (CPOS).

RETURN OF TITLE IV - MONEY YOU PAY BACK

When a student receives Title IV funds, either directly or by credit to their account, and they terminate their enrollment prior to the end of the semester, the financial aid they received is subject to repayment. Repayment is calculated based upon the number of days the student actually attended classes compared to the total number of days in the term. Calculation of Return to Title IV Funds is required for all students who receive Federal Title IV funds who withdraw, stop attending or fail all classes attempted, prior to completion of 60% of the term.

Example: A student received a Pell Grant for \$2775 for full time enrollment of 12 credit hours. Student charges for the term totaled \$792.45. The student completed 38 calendar days of the 106 days of the term.

Original Pell Award\$2775.00

Student withdraws after attending 30 calendar days (38/106) Percentage of Title IV aid earned 35.8% Amount of Title IV aid earned\$993.45

Pell award-Amount of Title IV aid unearned (Title IV aid to be returned)\$1781.55

Institutional Charges incurred By student\$792.45

Percentage of Title IV aid unearned 64.2% Institutional Charges unearned\$508.75

Title IV Aid to be returned by student (Original award–institutional charges = student amount x percentage unearned / 2 = total amount student must repay) (\$2775 - \$792.45 x 64.2% = \$1273/ 2 = \$636.40) \$636.40

Pell funds to be returned to the Department of Education by the institution\$508.75 (Student will be required to pay CCA and/or the Department of Education.)

Please note that a student must repay these funds if the amount owed by the student is at least \$50. Failure to repay requires the College to report the student to the U.S. Department of Education causing ineligibility of future Title IV funds at ANY educational institution. The complete Return of Title IV Funds policy and procedures that is followed by CCCS (Colorado Community College System) is published at: https://www.cccs.edu/policies-and-procedures/system-presidents-procedures/sp-4-20c-return-of-title-iv-funds/

PURCHASING BOOKS USING FINANCIAL AID FUNDS

CCA and the Follett College Bookstore allows those financial aid recipients to purchase books and supplies by charging the amount to the student's account. Financial Aid recipients must sign a form (Student Authorization Payment Form) that gives the college permission to use the student's financial aid to pay these charges. The bookstore charges will be subtracted from the students' financial aid award prior to disbursement of any remaining funds. Financial Aid recipients are encouraged to contact the Financial Aid Office to find out the procedure, as well as the scheduled dates that they can purchase books and supplies. Generally, students may obtain books and supplies at least a week prior to classes starting through the last day to drop/add courses. Follett Bookstore reserves the right to not issue an exchange or refund should you not have a receipt.

PACKAGING POLICY

CCA recognizes that there are insufficient funds to fully meet the needs of all applicants for financial aid. The packaging policy is designed to treat all applicants in an equitable manner in accordance with the Affirmative Action Policy of the college. Primary consideration for funds will be given, on a first-come, first-served basis, to those students who meet the criteria as defined in the Application Procedures section of the handbook. Need-based financial aid awards may not exceed a student's documented financial need. Maximum need-based gift assistance for full-time students may be the Federal Pell Grant plus \$6,000. Awards to students attending less than full-time and for those attending 12 months will be prorated. A copy of the complete packaging policy is available in the financial aid offices for student review.

REPEAT A COURSE POLICY

The Department of Education required colleges to limit how many times students can repeat a course and still receive financial aid for that course. Once a student earn a passing grade for a course that student can only repeat the course one more time and still receive financial aid. A passing grade is defined by the college as a D- or better. If a student enrolls in a previously passed course for a third time, this course will not count for financial aid purposes. The policy allows a student to receive financial aid under the following situations:

- 1. To **repeat any failed or withdrawn course** until a passing grade is received.
- 2. The repeat one time any course in which you previously received a passing grade.
- 3. Repeated courses are counted for all qualitative and quantitative measurements, as is coursework removed from the permanent transcript.

** Please note that the repeat course policy for financial aid is separate from institutional academic policies regarding repeat courses.

FINANCIAL AID SATISFACTORY ACADEMIC PROGRESS POLICY

Each institution that receives Title IV funds is required by the U.S. Department of Education, Section 132 of the Higher Education Amendments of 1976, to define and enforce standards for satisfactory academic progress. Satisfactory Academic Progress measures a student's performance in the following three areas/criteria: **completion rate, grade point average (GPA), and maximum time frame**. The Financial Aid Office is responsible for establishing and monitoring a standard of "satisfactory academic progress" for continuation of financial aid eligibility. The full policy is available online at https://ccaurora.edu/admission-aid/financial-aid/compliance-policies/

PROFESSIONAL JUDGMENTS (SPECIAL CIRCUMSTANCES)

A request for professional judgment is appropriate when you, your spouse or your parents experience a change in income from was reported on your original financial aid application. This request must include a **WRITTEN STATEMENT**, discussing the reason(s) for the requested change. This request form, along with **SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION**, must be submitted to the CCA Financial Aid Office before the last day to withdraw of the term for which you are requesting consideration. Incomplete requests or requests without documentation will not be considered.

FINANCIAL AID HANDBOOK



Connect With Our Community! CCAURORA.EDU/CONNECT











